IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JAMIE LEE TASKER,	
Petitioner,	
v.	
STATE OF FLORIDA,	CASE NO. SC09-1281
	First DCA No. 1D07-3072
Respondent.	

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF THE DECISION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER

NANCY A. DANIELS PUBLIC DEFENDER SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

GLEN P. GIFFORD APPELLATE DIVISION CHIEF ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER FLORIDA BAR NO. 664261 301 S. MONROE ST., SUITE 401 TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 (850) 606-8500

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

In December 2004, Tasker pled no contest to lewd or lascivious battery and felony child abuse. In January 2005, he was sentenced to six months in county jail, followed by 10 years on sex offender probation. He did not contest inclusion of 40 points for sexual contact on his Criminal Punishment Code (CPC) scoresheet; his sentence was a downward departure from the CPC minimum of 72.15 months in prison. In 2007, Tasker admitted violating probation and received a 10-year CPC sentence. He appealed. Before filing the initial brief, appellate counsel moved to correct the sentencing error of assessment of 40 victim injury points for sexual contact arising from the original conviction of lewd or lascivious battery. The motion was denied. The First District Court of Appeal affirmed, concluding that the motion to correct sentencing error filed during the appeal from the sentence imposed following probation revocation did not preserve the issue. Tasker v. State, 34 Fla. L. Weekly D1284 (Fla. 1st DCA June 24, 2009). In so ruling, the First District followed its precedent in Bowman v. State, 974 So. 2d 1205 (Fla. 1st DCA 2008), and Fitzhugh v. State, 698 So. 2d 571 (Fla. 1st DCA 2007). Acknowledging that other districts "have held to the contrary," the First District certified conflict with Stubbs v. State, 951 So. 2d 910 (Fla. 2d DCA 2007), Spell v. State, 731 So. 2d 9 (Fla. 2d DCA 2009), and Bogan v. State, 725 So. 2d 1216 (Fla. 2d DCA 1999).

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The certified conflict enables this Court to resolve an issue that has divided the First and Second Districts for more than a decade: May a challenge to victim injury points appearing in a scoresheet for the original sentencing and again after probation revocation be made for the first time in the probation revocation proceeding.

The First District first answered this question in the negative in 1997, and reaffirmed its position in another case in 2008 and again in this case in 2009. In contrast, the Second District held in 1998 that failure to challenge victim injury scoring during the original sentencing hearing does not permanently waive the issue. In subsequent decisions, that court reaffirmed that the challenge could be made after the original sentencing hearing and addressed scoresheet challenges made initially in probation revocation proceedings. In certifying conflict with three of the Second District decisions in this line of precedent, the First District recognized that the decade-long conflict should be resolved. A decision by this Court will unify the state court system on whether a challenge to victim injury scoring may be made for the first time in an appeal from the sentence imposed upon probation revocation. This Court should accept the First District's invitation to resolve this certified conflict.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD RESOLVE A DECADE-LONG CONFLICT BETWEEN THE FIRST AND SECOND DISTRICTS AND DETERMINE WHETHER A DEFENDANT CAN PRESERVE A CHALLENGE TO VICTIM INJURY POINTS BY SEEKING TO CORRECT THE ERROR DURING AN APPEAL FROM THE SENTENCE IMPOSED UPON PROBATION REVOCATION.

The three-judge First District panel in this case declined to address Tasker's claim that victim injury points were erroneously assessed, ruling that

[u]nder our case authority, appellant has not preserved the issue of the assessment of victim injury points. As we explained in <u>Fitzhugh v. State</u>, 698 So. 2d 571, 573 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997), "an appeal from resentencing following violation of probation is not the proper time to assert an error in the original scoresheet." <u>See also Bowman v. State</u>, 974 So. 2d 1205 (Fla. 1st DCA 2008).

<u>Tasker v. State</u>, 32 Fla. L. Weekly D1284 (Fla. 1st DCA June 24, 2009). In <u>Fitzhugh</u>, the court ruled that a challenge to victim injury scoring raised initially during briefing in the appeal from probation revocation was untimely. In <u>Bowman</u>, an appeal from probation revocation, the First District cited <u>Fitzhugh</u> in declining to address scoresheet errors reaching back to the original sentencing hearing. 974 So. 2d at 1207. The court cited <u>Stubbs v. State</u>, 951 So. 2d 910, 911 (Fla. 2d DCA 2007) (discussed below) as contrary authority, but Bowman did not seek conflict review by this Court.

In this case, Tasker, the First District adhered to its precedent and acknowledged a contrary line of case law from the Second District. The earliest Second District decision cited in Tasker is Wright v. State, 707 So. 2d 385 (Fla. 2d DCA 1998). There the defendant did not challenge victim injury scoring until sentencing for violation of probation. The scoresheet was irrelevant during the original sentencing hearing because sentence was imposed pursuant to a plea agreement. The district court rejected the state's argument that Wright waived the issue by failing to object at the original sentencing hearing. Id. at 385. In Bogan v. State, 725 So. 2d 1216 (Fla. 2d DCA 1999), the Second District followed its precedent in Wright. Although the court "recognize[d]" conflict with Fitzhugh, the state apparently did not seek review by this Court. In Spell v. State, 731 So. 2d 9 (Fla. 2d DCA 1999), the Second District again followed Wright and certified conflict with Fitzhugh. This Court granted and then dismissed review. State v. Spell, 775 So. 2d 291 (Fla. 2001).

In Routenberg v. State, 802 So. 2d 361 (Fla. 2d DCA 2001), the Second District reversed the denial of a motion to correct an illegal sentence challenging victim injury scoring. The court cited Spell and Bogan and noted that it "has declined to follow Fitzhugh." Id. at 362. The state did not seek review. Finally, in Stubbs v. State, 951 So. 2d 910 (Fla. 2d DCA 2007), the Second District reversed a trial court ruling declining to address challenges to scoresheet points for legal

constraint violation and victim injury made initially during sentencing following revocation of probation. Addressing the claim that the challenges were waived because they were not made in the original sentencing hearing, the court stated:

Here, there is no indication in the record that Stubbs agreed as part of his negotiated plea to the inclusion of victim injury and legal constraint points. Accordingly, the trial court erred when it refused to permit Stubbs to challenge the inclusion of victim injury and legal constraint points at sentencing following revocation of probation.

<u>Id.</u> at 911. The court cited <u>Spell</u> and <u>Bogan</u> and again recognized conflict with Fitzhugh. The state did not seek review.

The First District's certification of conflict with <u>Stubbs</u>, <u>Spell</u>, and <u>Bogan</u> marks the sixth time that the First or Second District has identified the conflict issue of whether a scoresheet error may be raised initially in a probation revocation proceeding even though it first occurred in the original sentencing hearing. In the five previous cases, the loser sought discretionary review only once, and this Court dismissed the case.

This case presents a second opportunity to resolve the certified conflict, eliminate the now decade-long disparity in treatment of this issue in the two districts, and give litigants throughout the state concrete notice as to when scoresheet challenges may be made. For these reasons, the Court should grant discretionary review.

CONCLUSION

Based on the arguments contained herein and the authorities cited in support thereof, the petitioner requests that this Honorable Court accept this case for discretionary review and direct briefing on the merits.