IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JAMIE LEE TASKER,

Petitioner,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

Case No. SC09-1281

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

BILL McCOLLUM ATTORNEY GENERAL

TRISHA MEGGS PATE
TALLAHASSEE BUREAU CHIEF,
CRIMINAL APPEALS
FLORIDA BAR NO. 0045489

HEATHER FLANAGAN ROSS ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR NO. 036428

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PL-01, THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (850) 414-3300 (850) 992-6674 (FAX)

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Respondent, the State of Florida, the Appellee in the District Court of Appeal (DCA) and the prosecuting authority in the trial court, will be referenced in this brief as Respondent, the prosecution, or the State. Petitioner, JAMIE LEE TASKER, the Appellant in the DCA and the defendant in the trial court, will be referenced in this brief as Petitioner or proper name.

"PJB" will designate Petitioner's Jurisdictional Brief. That symbol is followed by the appropriate page number.

A bold typeface will be used to add emphasis. Italics appeared in original quotations, unless otherwise indicated.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The pertinent history and facts are set out in the decision of the lower tribunal, attached in slip opinion form (hereinafter referenced as "slip op." at [page number]"). It also can be found at 34 Fla. L. Weekly D1284.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Petitioner asserts that the lower court has certified direct conflict of decision between its opinion entered below and that of the Second District Court of Appeal in Stubbs v. State, 951 So.2d 910 (Fla. 2d DCA 2007), Spell v. State, 731 So.2d 9 (Fla. 2d DCA 1999), and Bogan v. State, 725 So.2d 1216 (Fla. 2d DCA 1999). The "four corners" of the DCAs' decisions, reveal express and direct conflict with each other on the same point of law. Therefore, there is express and direct conflict, and this Court could exercise jurisdiction.

ARGUMENT

IS THERE EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT BETWEEN THE DECISION BELOW AND STUBBS V. STATE, 951 So.2d 910 (Fla. 2d DCA 2007), SPELL V. STATE, 731 So.2d 9 (Fla. 2d DCA 1999), and BOGAN V. STATE, 725 So.2d 1216 (Fla. 2d DCA 1999)? (Restated)

The First District Court of Appeal issued an affirmance with opinion in Tasker v. State, 34 Fla. L. Weekly D1284 (Fla. 1st DCA, June 24, 2009), holding that Appellant failed to "preserve the issue of the assessment of victim injury points" because Appellant failed to challenge the assessment was not raised at the initial sentencing. The First District Court relied on Fitzhugh v. State, 698 So.2d 571 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997), Bowman v. State, 974 So.2d 1205 (Fla. 1st DCA 2008), and Section 924.06(2), Florida Statutes The First District certified conflict with Stubbs v. State, 951 So.2d 910 (Fla. 2d DCA 2007) (holding that trial court erred in refusing to allow defendant to challenge the inclusion of victim injury and legal constraint points at sentencing following revocation of probation), Spell v. State, 731 So.2d 9 (Fla. 2d DCA 1999)(holding defendant could challenge victim injury points after revocation of community control), and Bogan v. State, 725 So.2d 1216 (Fla. 2d DCA 1999)(holding that defendant could challenge assessment of victim injury points in appeal of revocation of probation despite the fact that defendant did not raise the issue at the original sentencing hearing or in a prior appeal).

Petitioner contends that this Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), which parallels Article V, § 3(b)(3), Fla.

Const. The constitution provides: The supreme court ... [m]ay review any decision of a district court of appeal ... that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the supreme court on the same question of law.

The conflict between decisions "must be express and direct" and "must appear within the four corners of the majority decision." Reaves v. State, 485 So.2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986). Accord Dept. of Health and Rehabilitative Services v. Nat'l Adoption Counseling Service, Inc., 498 So.2d 888, 889 (Fla. 1986)(rejected "inherent" or "implied" conflict; dismissed petition). Neither the record, nor a concurring opinion, nor a dissenting opinion can be used to establish jurisdiction. Reaves, supra; Jenkins v. State, 385 So.2d 1356, 1359 (Fla. 1980)("regardless of whether they are accompanied by a dissenting or concurring opinion"). Thus, conflict cannot be based upon "unelaborated per curiam denials of relief," Stallworth v. Moore, 827 So.2d 974 (Fla. 2002). In addition, it is the "conflict of decisions, not conflict of opinions or reasons that supplies jurisdiction for review by certiorari." Jenkins, 385 So. 2d at 1359.

In <u>Ansin v. Thurston</u>, 101 So. 2d 808, 810 (Fla. 1958), this Court explained: It was never intended that the district courts of appeal should be intermediate courts. The revision and modernization of the Florida judicial system at the appellate level was prompted by the great volume of cases reaching the Supreme Court and the consequent delay in the administration of justice. The new article embodies throughout its terms the idea of a Supreme Court which functions as a supervisory body in the

judicial system for the State, exercising appellate power in certain specified areas essential to the settlement of issues of public importance and the preservation of uniformity of principle and practice, with review by the district courts in most instances being final and absolute.

The State agrees that there is a conflict as related to the very narrow issue of whether an Appellant can challenge the assessment of victim injury points scored by the trial court on an original sentencing scoresheet pursuant a negotiated plea agreement on a direct appeal of a subsequent violation of probation or community control.

Therefore, express and direct conflict exists, and this Court could exercise its jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing reason, there is conflict among the First and Second District Court of Appeals.